

Hidden Lane (228 acres); *Site 5* (54.42 acres total)—within the Penn Township Industrial Park located at 762 Wilson Avenue in York (10.55 acres), at 14 Barnhart Drive in York (9.82 acres), at 16 Barnhart Drive in York (2.36 acres), at 26 and 29 Barnhart Drive in Hanover (23.06 acres), and at PTIP Lots 32, 34, 37 and 38 (8.63 acres); *Site 7* (155 acres)—Greenspring Industrial Park, 305 Green Springs Road, York County; *Site 8* (152 acres)—Fairview Business Park located at McCarthy Drive and Industrial Drive in York County; *Site 9* (34 acres)—located at 900 Kriner Road in Chambersburg; *Site 10* (1,214 acres)—Cumberland Valley Business Park (formerly Letterkenny Army Depot), 5121A Coffey Avenue, Franklin County; *Site 11* (310 acres)—ProLogis Park 81, Interstate 81 and Walnut Bottom Road, Cumberland County; *Site 12* (242 acres)—LogistiCenter, Allen Road Extension and Distribution Drive, Carlisle; *Site 13* (100 acres total)—within the Capital Business Center in Middletown located at 400 First Street (11 acres), at 401 First Street (33 acres), 400 First Street Expressway (16 acres), at 500 Industrial Lane (8 acres), at 600 Hunter Lane (15 acres), and at 300 Hunter Lane (17 acres); *Site 14* (164 acres)—Conewago Industrial Park, 1100 Zeager Road, Elizabethtown; *Site 16* (134 acres, sunset 5/31/2014)—Matrix Development Group, 1201 South Antrim Way, Greencastle; *Site 17* (256 acres, sunset 5/31/2014)—United Business Park, 7810 Olde Scotland Road, Shippensburg; *Site 18* (208 acres, sunset 5/31/2014)—Key Logistics Park, Centerville Road, Newville; *Site 19* (292 acres, sunset 5/31/2014)—I-81 Commerce Park, Walnut Bottom Road, Shippensburg; *Site 20* (14.5 acres)—GlaxoSmithKline, 105 Willow Springs Lane, York; *Site 21* (4.4 acres)—Southern Cross Logistics, Inc., 2800 Concord Road, Suite A, York; *Site 22* (214 acres)—Caterpillar Logistics, 600 & 601 Memory Lane, York; *Site 23* (9.17 acres)—D&D Distribution Services, 789 Kings Mill Road, York; *Site 24* (24 acres)—401 Moulstown Road, Penn Township; *Site 25* (1 acre)—633-641 Lowther Road in Lewisberry; and, *Site 26* (151 acres total)—two parcels in Guilford Township located at WEN Drive and Guilford Springs Road (121 acres) and at Guilford Springs Road (30 acres). (**Note:** Site 6 was deleted through an administrative action; and, Site 15 was transferred to another zone project via Board Order 1502.)

For further information, contact Camille Evans at Camille.Evans@trade.gov or (202) 482-2350.

Dated: February 28, 2011.

Elizabeth Whiteman,

Acting Executive Secretary.

[FR Doc. 2011-4956 Filed 3-3-11; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 3510-DS-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Bureau of Industry and Security

Action Affecting Export Privileges; William Chi-Wai Tsu And Cheerway Corporation; Order Denying Export Privileges

In the Matter of:

William Chi-Wai Tsu, currently incarcerated at: Register Number 34009-112, USP Florence ADMAX, U.S. Penitentiary, P.O. Box 8500, Florence, CO 81226;

and with an address at:

1432 Forest Glen Drive, Unit #65, Hacienda Heights, CA 91745;

Respondent;

Cheerway Corporation, 1641 W. Main Street, Suite 308, Alhambra, CA 91801;

and with an address at:

1432 Forest Glenn Drive, Unit #65, Hacienda Heights, CA 91745;

Related Person.

A. Denial of Export Privileges of William Chi-Wai Tsu

On August 3, 2009, in the U.S. District Court for the Central District of California, William Chi-Wai Tsu (“Tsu”) pled guilty to, and was convicted of, violating two counts of the International Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701 *et seq.* (2000)) (“IEEPA”). Specifically, Tsu pled guilty to knowingly and willfully exporting and causing to be exported from the United States to the People’s Republic of China Triquint Semiconductor integrated circuits classified as Export Control Classification Number 3A001 without first obtaining from the U.S. Department of Commerce a license or written authorization for such export, knowing such a license or authorization was required. Tsu was sentenced to 40 months of imprisonment and three years of supervised release.

Section 766.25 of the Export Administration Regulations (“EAR” or “Regulations”) ¹ provides, in pertinent part, that “[t]he Director of the Office of

¹ The Regulations are currently codified in the Code of Federal Regulations at 15 CFR Parts 730-774 (2010). The Regulations issued pursuant to the EAA (50 U.S.C. app. sections 2401-2420 (2000)). Since August 21, 2001, the EAA has been in lapse and the President, through Executive Order 13222 of August 17, 2001 (3 CFR, 2001 Comp. 783 (2002)), which has been extended by successive Presidential Notices, the most recent being that of August 12, 2010 (75 FR 50681, August 16, 2010), has continued the Regulations in effect under the International Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701 *et seq.* (2000)).

Exporter Services, in consultation with the Director of the Office of Export Enforcement, may deny the export privileges of any person who has been convicted of a violation of the [Export Administration Act (“EAA”)], the EAR, of any order, license or authorization issued thereunder; any regulation, license, or order issued under the International Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701-1706); 18 U.S.C. 793, 794 or 798; section 4(b) of the Internal Security Act of 1950 (50 U.S.C. 783(b)), or section 38 of the Arms Export Control Act (22 U.S.C. 2778).” 15 CFR 766.25(a); see also Section 11(h) of the EAA, 50 U.S.C. app. section 2410(h). The denial of export privileges under this provision may be for a period of up to 10 years from the date of the conviction. 15 CFR 766.25(d); see also 50 U.S.C. app. section 2410(h). In addition, Section 750.8 of the Regulations states that the Bureau of Industry and Security’s Office of Exporter Services may revoke any Bureau of Industry and Security (“BIS”) licenses previously issued in which the person had an interest in at the time of his conviction.

I have received notice of Tsu’s conviction for violating the IEEPA, and have provided notice and an opportunity for Tsu to make a written submission to BIS, as provided in Section 766.25 of the Regulations. I have not received a submission from Tsu. Based upon my review and consultations with BIS’s Office of Export Enforcement, including its Director, and the facts available to BIS, I have decided to deny Tsu’s export privileges under the Regulations for a period of 10 years from the date of Tsu’s conviction. I have also decided to revoke all licenses issued pursuant to the Act or Regulations in which Tsu had an interest at the time of his conviction.

B. Denial of Export Privileges of Related Person

Pursuant to Sections 766.25(h) and 766.23 of the Regulations, the Director of BIS’s Office of Exporter Services, in consultation with the Director of BIS’s Office of Export Enforcement, may take action to name persons related to a Respondent by ownership, control, position of responsibility, affiliation, or other connection in the conduct of trade or business in order to prevent evasion of a denial order. Because Tsu is the vice president of Cheerway Corporation (“Cheerway”), Cheerway is related to Tsu by ownership, control, position of responsibility, affiliation, or other connection in the conduct of trade or business. BIS believes that naming Cheerway as a related person to Tsu is

necessary to avoid evasion of the denial order against Tsu.

As provided in Section 766.23 of the Regulations, I gave notice to Cheerway that its export privileges under the Regulations could be denied for up to 10 years due to its relationship with Tsu and that BIS believes naming it as a person related to Tsu would be necessary to prevent evasion of a denial order imposed against Tsu. In providing such notice, I gave Cheerway an opportunity to oppose its addition to the Tsu Denial Order as a related party. Having received no submission, I have decided, following consultations with BIS's Office of Export Enforcement, including its Director, to name Cheerway as a Related Person to the Tsu Denial Order, thereby denying its export privileges for 10 years from the date of Tsu's conviction.

I have also decided to revoke all licenses issued pursuant to the Act or Regulations in which the Related Person had an interest at the time of Tsu's conviction. The 10-year denial period will end on August 3, 2019.

Accordingly, *it is hereby ordered:*

I. Until August 3, 2019, William Chi-Wai Tsu with last known addresses at: Register Number 34009-112, USP Florence ADMAX, U.S. Penitentiary, P.O. Box 8500, Florence, CO 81226 and 1432 Forest Glen Drive, Unit #65, Hacienda Heights, CA 91745, and when acting for or on behalf of Tsu, his representatives, assigns, agents or employees (collectively referred to hereinafter as the "Denied Person"), and the following person related to the Denied Person as defined by Section 766.23 of the Regulations: Cheerway Corporation, with last known addresses at: 1641 W. Main Street, Suite 308, Alhambra, CA 91801, and 1432 Forest Glenn Drive, Unit #65, Hacienda Heights, CA 91745, and when acting for or on behalf of Cheerway, its successors or assigns, agents, or employees ("the Related Person") (together, the Denied Person and the Related Person are "Persons Subject to this Order"), may not, directly or indirectly, participate in any way in any transaction involving any commodity, software or technology (hereinafter collectively referred to as "item") exported or to be exported from the United States that is subject to the Regulations, or in any other activity subject to the Regulations, including but not limited to:

A. Applying for, obtaining, or using any license, License Exception, or export control document;

B. Carrying on negotiations concerning, or ordering, buying, receiving, using, selling, delivering, storing, disposing of, forwarding,

transporting, financing, or otherwise servicing in any way, any transaction involving any item exported or to be exported from the United States that is subject to the Regulations, or in any other activity subject to the Regulations; or

C. Benefitting in any way from any transaction involving any item exported or to be exported from the United States that is subject to the Regulations, or in any other activity subject to the Regulations.

II. No person may, directly or indirectly, do any of the following:

A. Export or reexport to or on behalf of the Persons Subject to this Order any item subject to the Regulations;

B. Take any action that facilitates the acquisition or attempted acquisition by the Persons Subject to this Order of the ownership, possession, or control of any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States, including financing or other support activities related to a transaction whereby the Persons Subject to this Order acquire or attempt to acquire such ownership, possession or control;

C. Take any action to acquire from or to facilitate the acquisition or attempted acquisition from the Persons Subject to this Order of any item subject to the Regulations that has been exported from the United States;

D. Obtain from the Persons Subject to this Order in the United States any item subject to the Regulations with knowledge or reason to know that the item will be, or is intended to be, exported from the United States; or

E. Engage in any transaction to service any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States and which is owned, possessed or controlled by the Persons Subject to this Order, or service any item, of whatever origin, that is owned, possessed or controlled by the Persons Subject to this Order if such service involves the use of any item subject to the Regulations that has been or will be exported from the United States. For purposes of this paragraph, servicing means installation, maintenance, repair, modification or testing.

III. In addition to the Related Person named above, after notice and opportunity for comment as provided in section 766.23 of the Regulations, any other person, firm, corporation, or business organization related to the Denied Person by affiliation, ownership, control, or position of responsibility in the conduct of trade or related services may also be made subject to the provisions of this Order if necessary to prevent evasion of the Order.

IV. This Order does not prohibit any export, reexport, or other transaction subject to the Regulations where the only items involved that are subject to the Regulations are the foreign-produced direct product of U.S.-origin technology.

V. This Order is effective immediately and shall remain in effect until August 3, 2019.

VI. In accordance with Part 756 of the Regulations, Tsu may file an appeal of this Order with the Under Secretary of Commerce for Industry and Security. The appeal must be filed within 45 days from the date of this Order and must comply with the provisions of Part 756 of the Regulations.

VII. In accordance with Part 756 of the Regulations, the Related Person may also file an appeal of this Order with the Under Secretary of Commerce for Industry and Security. The appeal must be filed within 45 days from the date of this Order and must comply with the provisions of Part 756 of the Regulations.

VIII. A copy of this Order shall be delivered to the Denied Person and the Related Person. This Order shall be published in the **Federal Register**.

Issued this 7th day of February, 2011.

Bernard Kritzer,

Director, Office of Exporter Services.

[FR Doc. 2011-4819 Filed 3-3-11; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 3510-DT-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

International Trade Administration

[A-570-868]

Folding Metal Tables and Chairs From the People's Republic of China: Notice of Extension of Time Limit for the Preliminary Results of the 2009-2010 Antidumping Duty Administrative and New Shipper Reviews

AGENCY: Import Administration, International Trade Administration, Department of Commerce.

DATES: *Effective Date:* March 4, 2011.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Lilit Astvatsatryan or Charles Riggle, AD/CVD Operations, Office 8, Import Administration, International Trade Administration, U.S. Department of Commerce, 14th Street and Constitution Avenue, NW., Washington, DC 20230; telephone: (202) 482-6412 or (202) 482-0650, respectively.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background

On July 28 and 29, 2010, the Department of Commerce ("the